High-Speed Connections Version 1.0 Specification

MFA Forum 11.0.0

MFA Forum Technical Committee February 2006 **Note:** The user's attention is called to the possibility that implementation of the MFAF specification contained herein may require the use of inventions covered by patent rights held by third parties. By publication of this MFAF specification, the MFA Forum makes no representation that the implementation of this specification will not infringe on any third party rights. The MFA Forum takes no position with respect to any claim that has been, or may be, asserted by any third party, the validity of any patent rights related to any such claims, or the extent to which a license to use any such rights may not be available.

Editor:

John Rutemiller
john.rutemiller@marconi.com

For more information contact:

The MFA Forum

Suite 307 39355 California Street Fremont, CA 94538 USA

Phone: +1 (510) 608-3997 FAX: +1 (510) 608-5917 E-Mail: info@mfaforum.org WWW: http://www.mfaforum.org

Full Notice

Copyright © 2005 MFA Forum.

All rights reserved.

This document and translations of it may be copied and furnished to others, and works that comment on or otherwise explain it or assist in its implementation may be prepared, copied, published and distributed, in whole or in part, without restriction of any kind, provided that the above copyright notice and this paragraph are included on all such copies and derivative works. However, this document itself may not be modified in any way, such as by removing the copyright notice or references to the MFA Forum, except as needed for the purpose of developing MFAF implementation agreements (in which case the procedures copyrights defined by the MFA Forum must be followed), or as required to translate it into languages other than English

This document and the information contained herein is provided on an "AS IS" basis and THE MFA FORUM DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY WARRANTY THAT THE USE OF THE INFORMATION HEREIN WILL NOT INFRINGE ANY RIGHTS OR ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

Acknowledgements

The Control Signalling working group was chaired by Ethan Spiegel. John Rutemiller edited the specification. The minutes at related working group meetings were recorded by Ethan Spiegel.

The following people made significant technical contributions to the

High-Speed Connections specification:

Peter Roberts

Viqar Shaikh

Table of Contents

1	Introduction	1
1.1	Applicability	1
1.1.1	Applicability to PNNI 1.0	1
1.1.2	Applicability to UNI Signalling 4.0.	1
1.1.3	Applicability to AINI	1
2	References	2
3	Information Element Coding for High-Speed Connections	3
3.1	ATM Traffic Descriptor Information Element	3
3.2	ATC Setup Parameters Information Element	7
3.3	MDCR Information Element	8
3.4	Alternative ATM traffic descriptor	8
3.5	Minimum acceptable ATM traffic descriptor	9
4	UNI Support of High Rate Traffic Parameters	10
4.1	Changes to UNI Signalling Messages	10
4.1.1	Basic Point-to-Point Call at the UNI	10
4.1.2	Point-to-Multipoint calls at the UNI	11
4.1.3	Active Connection Modify	12
4.2	Procedures at the UNI	13
4.3	Guidelines on the use of Bearer Class, Traffic Parameters, and QoS	13
5	PNNI support of High-Rate Traffic Parameters	14
5.1	Changes to PNNI Signalling Messages	14
5.1.1	SETUP	14
5.1.2	ADDPARTY	14
5.1.3	CONNECT	15
5.1.4	MODIFY REQUEST	
5.1.5	MODIFY ACKNOWLEDGE	16
5.2	Signalling Procedures for High-Rate Traffic Parameters	16
6	AINI support of High-Rate Traffic Parameters	16
7	Compatibility with Nodes Not Supporting This Feature	16

1 Introduction

[Informative]

In the ATM Traffic Descriptor and other information elements used in UNI Signalling 4.1, PNNI 1.1, AINI 1.1 and their predecessors, cell rates are encoded using three-octet fields. This represents a maximum rate of approximately 7.1 Gigabits per second. Devices with 10 Gigabits-per-second interfaces based on af-phy-0133.001 can potentially require the establishment of a connection that exceeds the maximum rate that can be signalled with the three-octet encoding scheme in the ATM Traffic Descriptor.

This specification defines the method for encoding cell rates in the ATM Traffic Descriptor and other information elements, using a four-octet value in place of the three-octet value when any of the cell rates exceed 2^{24} cells per second. This represents a maximum rate of approximately 1.8 Terabits per second. The three-octet encoding scheme is still used when all of the cell rates are below 2^{24} cells per second, in order to maintain backwards compatibility.

1.1 Applicability

[Normative]

This specification is an optional addendum to UNI Signalling 4.1, PNNI 1.1, as amended by PNNI 1.1 Errata, and AINI 1.1.

1.1.1 Applicability to PNNI 1.0

Devices supporting PNNI 1.0 may implement the functionality defined in this addendum by treating this addendum as if it were an optional addendum to the PNNI 1.0 specification and the PNNI 1.0 Errata and PICS addendum. No new PNNI 1.1 features are required for support of high-speed connections.

1.1.2 Applicability to UNI Signalling 4.0

Devices supporting UNI Signalling 4.0 may implement the functionality defined in this addendum by treating this addendum as if it were an optional addendum to the UNI Signalling 4.0 specification. No new UNI Signalling 4.1 features are required for support of high-speed connections.

1.1.3 Applicability to AINI

Devices supporting AINI may implement the functionality defined in this addendum by treating this addendum as if it were an optional addendum to AINI. No new AINI features are required for support of high-speed connections.

2 References

[Q.2931]	Broadband Integrated Services Digital Network (B-ISDN) – Digital Subscriber Signalling System No. 2 (DSS 2) – User-Network Interface (UNI) Layer 3 Specification for Basic Call/Connection Control, February 1995
[Q2931a4]	Digital Subscriber Signalling System No. 2 User-Network Interface (UNI) Layer 3 specification for basic call/connection control Amendment 4, ITU-T Recommendation Q.2931 – Amendment 4, December 1999
[Q.2961.1]	Broadband Integrated Services Digital Network (B-ISDN) – Digital Subscriber Signalling System No. 2 (DSS 2) – Additional Traffic Parameters, October 1999
[Q.2963.1]	Digital Subscriber signalling system No. 2 – Connection modification: Peak cell rate modification by the connection owner, December 1999
[Q.2963.2]	Digital Subscriber signalling system No. 2 – Connection modification: Modification procedures for sustainable cell rate parameters, September 1997
[Q.2963.3]	Digital Subscriber signalling system No. 2 – Connection modification: ATM traffic descriptor modification with negotiation by the connection owner, May 1998
[af-sig-0061.000]	ATM User-Network Interface (UNI) Signalling Specification Version 4.0, July 1996
[af-sig-0061.002]	ATM User-Network Interface (UNI) Signalling Specification Version 4.1, April 2002
[af-cs-0147.000]	UBR with MDCR Addendum to UNI Signalling 4.0, PNNI 1.0 and AINI, July 2000
[af-cs-0148.001]	Modification of Traffic Parameters for an Active Connection Signalling Specification, July 2000
[af-cs-0167.000]	Guaranteed Frame Rate (GFR) Signalling (PNNI, AINI and UNI) Version 1.0, August 2001
[af-pnni-0055.000]	Private Network-Network Interface Specification Version 1.0 (PNNI 1.0), March 1996
[af-pnni-0081.000]	PNNI v1.0 Errata and PICs, July 1997
[af-pnni-0055.002]	Private Network-Network Interface Specification Version 1.1 (PNNI 1.1), April 2002
[af-pnni-0205.000]	PNNI 1.1 Errata Version 1.0, July 2005
[af-sig-0125.000]	ATM Inter-Network Interface (AINI) Specification, July 1999
[af-sig-0125.002]	ATM Inter-Network Interface (AINI) Specification Version 1.1, September 2002

3 Information Element Coding for High-Speed Connections

3.1 ATM Traffic Descriptor Information Element

Modify Figure 4-13/Q.2931 to add an "*" to octet groups 7 and 8.

The following octet groups and notes are added to Figure 4-13/Q.2931, as modified by Figure 1/Q.2961.1.

	High	rate forwa	rd peak cel	l rate identi	fier (CLP =	= 0)		25*
1	1	0	0	0	0	1	0	(Note 1,5)
_	High	rate forwa	rd peak cel	l rate ident	ifier (CLP =	= 0)		25.1*
								25.2*
								25.3*
								25.4*
	High R	ate Backw	ard peak co	ell rate ider	tifier (CLP	=0)		26*
1	1	0	0	0	0	1	1	(Note 1,5)
_	High F	Rate Backv	vard peak c	ell rate ide	ntifier (CLF	P = 0)		26.1*
								26.2*
								26.3*
								26.4*
	High Ra	ate Forwar	d peak cell	rate identif	ier (CLP=	0 + 1)		27*
1	1	0	0	0	1	0	0	(Note 1,5)
	High Ra	ate Forward	d peak cell	rate identif	ier (CLP =	0 + 1)		27.1*
								27.2*
								27.3*
								27.4*
	High Rat	e Backwai	d peak cell	rate identi	fier (CLP =	(0+1)		28*
1	1	0	0	0	1	0	1	(Note 1,5)
	High Rat	te Backwai	rd peak cell	l rate identi	fier (CLP =	= 0 + 1)		28.1*
								28.2*
								28.3*
								28.4*

	High Ra	te Forward S	Sustainable	Cell Rate	identifier (C	CLP = 0)		29*		
1	1	0	0	1	0	0	0	(Note 2,5)		
							_	29.1*		
	High Rate Forward Sustainable cell rate identifier (CLP = 0)									
		ate Porward	Sustamadi	e cen rate r	denumer (C	Lr = 0)		29.3*		
								29.4*		
	High Rat	e Backward	Sustainable	e Cell Rate	identifier (CLP = 0)		30*		
1	1	0	0	1	0	0	1	(Note 2,5)		
								30.1*		
	— High Ra	te Backward	l Sustainab	le cell rate	identifier ((CLP = 0		30.2*		
		no Buen ware	. Sustainas	io com ruto	identifier (C	3 21 0)		30.3*		
								30.4*		
	High Rate	Forward Su	stainable C	Cell Rate ide	entifier (CL	P = 0 + 1		31*		
1	1	0	1	0	0	0	0	(Note 2,5)		
	<u></u>							31.1*		
	— High Rate	e Forward S	ustainable o	cell rate ide	ntifier (CL)	P = 0 + 1		31.2*		
	<u> </u>							31.3*		
								31.4*		
	High Rate	Backward S	ustainable (Cell Rate ic	lentifier (Cl	LP = 0 + 1)		32*		
1	1	0	1	0	0	0	1	(Note 2,5)		
	<u></u>							32.1*		
	— High Rate	Backward S	Sustainable	cell rate id	entifier (CL	P = 0 + 1		32.2*		
					(02	- /		32.3*		
								32.4*		

	High Rate	e Forward	Maximum 1	Burst Size i	dentifier (C	CLP = 0)		33*
1	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	(Note 2,
	<u></u>					_		33.1*
	— High Rat	e Forward	Maximum l	Rurst Size	identifier (C	T P – (1) –		33.2*
		c Porward.	iviaxiiiiuiii i	Durst Size	identifier (C	LI = 0) -		33.3*
								33.4*
	High Rate	Backward	Maximum	Burst Size	identifier (CLP = 0)		34*
1	1	1	0	0	0	0	1	(Note 2,
	<u>—</u>					=		34.1*
	High Rate	Backward	Maximum	Burst Size	identifier (CLP = 0) -		34.2*
	<u> </u>					/ -		34.3*
								34.4*
	High Rate l	Forward M	aximum Bu	ırst Size ide	entifier (CL	P = 0 + 1)		35*
1	1	1	1	0	0	0	0	(Note 2,
						_		35.1*
	— High Rate l	Forward M	aximum Bu	ırst Size id	entifier (CL	P = 0 + 1) -		35.2*
	_							35.3*
								35.4*
	High Rate E	BackwardM	Iaximum Bı	urst Size id	entifier (CL	P = 0 + 1		36*
1	1	1	1	0	0	0	1	(Note 2
	<u>—</u>					-		36.1*
	—High Rate E	Backward M	Iaximum B	urst Size ic	lentifier (CI	$\mathbf{LP} = 0 + 1)$		36.2*
	_					-		36.3*
								36.4*
	=				ntifier (CLF			37*
1	1	0	1	0	0	1	0	(Note 3
	<u> </u>					_		37.1*
	High Rate	Forward M	Iinimum Ce	ell Rate ide	ntifier (CLI	P = 0 + 1) -		37.2*
	_				•	, -		37.3*
								37.4*
	High Rate I							38*
1	1	0	1	0	0	1	1	(Note 3,
	_					_		38.1*
	— High Rate l	Backward l	Minimum C	Cell Rate id	entifier (CL	P = 0 + 1) -		38.2*
					(32	- · -/ -		38.3*
								38.4*

High Rate Forward Burst Cell Tolerance							39*		
1	1	1	1	1	0	1	0	(Note 4,5)	
								41.1*	
		High Date	. Forward I	Dunat Call T	'alaman aa			41.2*	
		nigii Kat	e Forward E	burst Cell 1	olerance			41.3*	
								41.4*	
		High Rate	Backward	Burst Cell	Tolerance			40*	
1	1	1	1	1	0	1	1	(Note 4,5)	
								42.1*	
	High Rate Backward Burst Cell Tolerance								
								42.4*	

NOTES

- 1 Encoding of octet groups 25-28 shall use the encoding rules for octet groups 5-8, as specified in 4.5.6/Q.2931, using four octets in place of three octets.
- 2 Encoding of octet groups 29-36 shall use the encoding rules for octet groups 9-16, as specified in 1.9.1/Q.2961.1, using four octets in place of three octets.
- 3 Encoding of octet groups 37-38 shall use the encoding rules for octet groups 19-20, as specified in 10.1.2.3/af-cs-0061.002, using four octets in place of three octets.
- 4 Encoding of octet groups 39-40 shall use the encoding rules for octet groups 21-22, as specified in afcs-0167.000, using four octets in place of three octets.
- 5 If any of octet groups 25-40 are present, then octet groups 5-16 and 19-24 shall not be present.

Replace the note in Figure 1/Q.2961.1 with the following:

NOTE – Inclusion of a Forward Peak Cell Rate (for CLP = 0+1) and a Backward Peak Cell Rate (for CLP = 0+1) is mandatory if the ATM traffic descriptor information element is included in the SETUP message. The Forward Peak Cell Rate (for CLP = 0+1) and Backward Peak Cell Rate (for CLP = 0+1) shall be encoded using either octet groups 7 and 8, or octet groups 27 and 28. Inclusion of a Forward Peak Cell Rate (for CLP = 0+1) and a Backward Peak Cell Rate (for CLP = 0+1) is optional if the ATM Traffic Descriptor information element is included in the CONNECT message.

3.2 ATC Setup Parameters Information Element

Modify the figure in section 10.1.2.2/af-sig-0061.002 so octet groups 5-8 refer to Note 3 instead of Note 1.

The following octet groups and notes are added to the figure in section 10.1.2.2/af-sig-0061.002:

Bits				
8 7 6 5 4	3	2	1	Octets
High Rate Forward ABR Initial Cell Rate is	dentifier (CL	P = 0 + 1)		14*
1 1 1 0 0	0	1	0	(Note 2,3)
High Rate Forward ABR Initial Cell Rate i	dentifier (CL	P = 0 + 1)		14.1*
				14.2*
				14.3*
				14.4*
High Rate Backward ABR Initial Cell Rate	identifier (CI	$\mathbf{LP} = 0 + 1$)	15*
1 1 1 0 0	0	1	1	(Note 2,3)
High Rate Backward ABR Initial Cell	Rate (CLP =	0 + 1)		15.1*
				15.2*
				15.3*
				15.4*
High Rate Forward ABR Transient Buffer Expos	sure identifie	r(CLP = 0)) + 1)	16*
1 1 1 0 0	1	0	0	(Note 2,3)
High Rate Forward ABR Transient Buffer I	Exposure (CL	$\mathbf{P} = 0 + 1$)	16.1*
				16.2*
				16.3*
				16.4*
High Rate Backward ABR Transient Buffer Expo	sure identifie	er (CLP =	0 + 1)	17*
1 1 1 0 0	1	0	1	(Note 2,3)
High Rate Backward ABR Transient Buffer	Exposure (Cl	$LP = \overline{0+1}$)	17.1*
				17.2*
				i
				17.3*

- 2 Encoding of octet groups 14-17 shall use the encoding rules for octet groups 5-8, as specified in 10.1.2.2/af-sig-0061.002, using four octets in place of three octets.
- 3 Inclusion of a Forward ABR Initial Cell Rate, a Backward ABR Initial Cell Rate, a Forward ABR Transient Buffer Exposure and a Backward ABR Transient Buffer Exposure is optional in the user-to-network direction in a SETUP message, mandatory in the network-to-user direction in a SETUP message, and mandatory in both directions in a CONNECT message. These shall be encoded using either octet groups 5-8 or octet groups 14-17. If any of octet groups 14-17 are present, then octet groups 5-8 shall not be present.

Change the text in Section 6.4.5.6 of af-pnni-0055.002 to the following:

See Section 10.1.2.2 of the UNI Signalling 4.1 specification, as modified by **Error! Reference source not found.**, with the following changes:

- Octet groups 9 13 are required
- Either octet groups 5-8 or 14-17 shall be present. If octet groups 14-17 are present, then octet groups 5-8 shall not be present.

3.3 MDCR Information Element

The following octet groups and notes are added to Figure 3.1/af-cs-0147.000:

	Bits								
8	7	6	5	4	3	2	1	Octets	
Н	igh Rate For	rward Min	imum Desir	ed Cell Ra	te Identifier	(CLP=0+	1)	8*	
1	1	0	0	0	0	0	1	(Note 1,2)	
								8.1*	
	High	Data Form	and Minimu	ım Dasimad	Call Data v	oluo		8.2*	
	підіі	Kale Forw	ard Minimu	iiii Desired	Cell Rate v	arue		8.3*	
								8.4*	
Hi	gh Rate Bac	kward Mii	nimum Desi	red Cell R	ate Identifie	r (CLP=0+	-1)	9*	
1	1	0	0	0	0	1	0	(Note 1,2)	
								9.1*	
	High Rate Backward Minimum Desired Cell Rate value								
								9.4*	

NOTES

- 2 Encoding of octet groups 8-9 shall use the encoding rules for octet groups 6-7, as specified in Figure 3.1/af-sig-0147.000, using four octets in place of three octets.
- 3 If any of octet groups 8-9 are present, then octet groups 6-7 shall not be present.

3.4 Alternative ATM traffic descriptor

Replace the last row in Figure 8-1/af-sig-0061.002 with the following:

Further octets as contents of ATM Traffic Descriptor (Figure 4-13/Q.2931 and Figure 1/Q.2961.1, as modified by section 2 \ 4.5.6/Q.2931 and section 3.1/Error! Reference source not found.)

5-18*
and
25-40*

3.5 Minimum acceptable ATM traffic descriptor

Replace the last row in Figure 8-2/af-sig-0061.002 with the following:

Octet groups 5 through 8 are encoded as octet groups 5 through 8 specified in Figure 4-13/Q.2931 and Table 4-7/Q.2931

Octet groups 9 through 16 are encoded as octet groups 9 through 16 specified in Figure 1/Q.2961.1 and Table 2/Q.2961.1

Octet groups 17 and 18 are encoded as octet groups 19 and 20, respectively, specified in section 10.1.2.3/af-sig-0061.002.

Octet groups 19 through 22 are encoded as octet groups 21 through 24 specified in Figure 2-1/af-cs-0167.000

Octet groups 23 through 38 are encoded as octet groups 25 through 40, as specified in section 3.1/Error! Reference source not found.)

5-38*

4 UNI Support of High Rate Traffic Parameters [Normative]

4.1 Changes to UNI Signalling Messages

4.1.1 Basic Point-to-Point Call at the UNI

Change the following in section 2.0/af-sig-0061.002 Basic point-to-point call:

3.1.3/Q.2931 CONNECT:

Change the references and lengths of the indicated information elements in Table 3-4/Q.2931:

Information Element	Reference	Direction	Type	Length
ATM Traffic Descriptor	3.1/Error! Reference source not found.	both	M	12-40
Alternative ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section 3.4/Error! Reference source not found.	both	O	12-40
Minimum acceptable ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section 3.5/Error! Reference source not found.	both	O	12-38
ATC Setup Parameters	Section 3.2/Error! Reference source not found.	both	O	6-36

3.1.7/Q.2931 SETUP:

Change the references and lengths of the indicated information elements in Table 3-8/Q.2931:

Information Element name	Reference	Direction	Type	Length
ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section	both	M	12-40
	3.1/ Error!			
	Reference			
	source not			
	found.			
Alternative ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section	both	O	12-40
	3.4/ Error!			
	Reference			
	source not			

	found.			
Minimum acceptable ATM Traffic	Section	both	O	12-38
Descriptor	3.5/ Error!			
	Reference			
	source not			
	found.			
ATC Setup Parameters	Section	both	O	6-36
	3.2/ Error!			
	Reference			
	source not			
	found.			
Minimum Desired Cell Rate	Section	both	O	15
	3.3/ Error!			
	Reference			
	source not			
	found.			

4.1.2 Point-to-Multipoint calls at the UNI

Add the following to section 5/UNI 4.1 Point-to-Multipoint Calls:

8.1.2.1/Q.2971 ADD PARTY:

Change the references and lengths of the indicated information elements in Table 8-10/Q.2971:

Information Element name	Reference	Direction	Type	Length
ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section	both	M	12-40
	3.1/ Error!			
	Reference			
	source not			
	found.			
Alternative ATM Descriptor	Section	both	O	12-40
	3.4/ Error!			
	Reference			
	source not			
	found.			
Minimum acceptable ATM Traffic	Section	both	O	6-36
Descriptor	3.5/ Error!			
	Reference			
	source not			
	found.			
Minimum Desired Cell Rate	Section	both	O	15
	3.3/ Error!			
	Reference			
	source not			
	found.			

4.1.3 Active Connection Modify

Change the references and lengths of the indicated information elements in section 2.1.1/af-cs-0148.003 § 8.1.1/Q.2963:

Information Element	Reference	Direction	Type	Length
Minimum Desired Cell Rate	Section 3.3/Error! Reference source not found.	both	O	15

Add the following to section 2.1.1/af-cs-0148.001:

8.1.1/Q.2963.1 MODIFY REQUEST:

Change the references and lengths of the indicated information elements in Table 8-1/Q.2963.1:

Information Element	Reference	Direction	Type	Length
ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section 3.1/Error! Reference source not found.	both	M	12-40
Minimum Desired Cell Rate	Section 3.3/Error! Reference source not found.	both	0	15

8.1.1/Q.2963.3 MODIFY REQUEST:

Change the references and lengths of the indicated information elements in Table 8-1/Q.2963.3:

Information Element	Reference	Direction	Type	Length
Alternative ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section 3.4/Error! Reference source not found.	both	O	12-40
Minimum acceptable ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section 3.5/Error! Reference source not found.	both	0	12-38

8.1.2/Q.2963.3 MODIFY ACKNOWLEDGE:

Change the references and lengths of the indicated information elements in Table 8-2/Q.2963.3:

Information Element	Reference	Direction	Type	Length
ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section 3.1/Error! Reference source not found.	both	M	12-40

4.2 Procedures at the UNI

When the user or network needs to encode a cell rate that is greater than or equal to 2^{24} cells per second in the ATM traffic descriptor, the Alternative ATM traffic descriptor, the Minimum acceptable ATM traffic descriptor, the ATC setup parameters, or the Minimum desired cell rate information element, the high-rate values defined in Section 3 for that information element shall be used.

When all cell rates are less than 2^{24} cells per second in the ATM traffic descriptor, the Alternative ATM traffic descriptor, the Minimum acceptable ATM traffic descriptor, the ATC setup parameters, or the Minimum desired cell rate information element, the high-rate values defined in Section 3 for that information element should not be used.

The user or network shall process the High Rate version of the traffic parameters in a manner identical to the processing of the normal version of these parameters.

4.3 Guidelines on the use of Bearer Class, Traffic Parameters, and QoS

UNI4.1, Annex 9, specifies valid combinations of traffic parameters using the field name for each parameter. With implementation of this specification, the field names in these tables shall be interpreted to mean either the normal version of the traffic parameter or the high-rate version.

5 PNNI support of High-Rate Traffic Parameters

[Normative]

5.1 Changes to PNNI Signalling Messages

5.1.1 **SETUP**

Change the references and lengths of the indicated information elements in Figure 6-8 in 6.3.1.6/af-pnni-0055.002:

Information Element	Reference	Type	Length
ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section 3.1/Error! Reference source not found.	М	12-40
Alternative ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section 3.4/Error! Reference source not found.	O	12-40
Minimum acceptable ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section 3.5/Error! Reference source not found.	O	12-38
ABR Setup Parameters	Section 3.2/Error! Reference source not found.	0	6-36
Minimum Desired Cell Rate	Section 3.3/Error! Reference source not found.	О	15

5.1.2 ADDPARTY

Change the references and lengths of the indicated information elements in Figure 6-19 in 6.3.4.1.6/afpnni-0055.002:

Information Element	Reference	Type	Length
Minimum acceptable ATM Traffic	Section	О	12-38

Descriptor	3.5/Error! Reference source not found.		
Minimum Desired Cell Rate	Section 3.3/Error! Reference source not found.	О	15

5.1.3 CONNECT

Change the references and lengths of the indicated information elements in Figure 6-5 in 6.3.1.3/PNNI 1.1:

Information Element	Reference	Type	Length
ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section 3.1/Error! Reference source not found.	М	12-40
Alternative ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section 3.4/Error! Reference source not found.	O	12-40
Minimum acceptable ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section 3.5/Error! Reference source not found.	O	12-38
ABR Setup Parameters	Section 3.2/Error! Reference source not found.	O	6-36

5.1.4 MODIFY REQUEST

Change the references and lengths of the indicated information elements in Table 2-1/af-cs-0148.003:

Information Element	Reference	Type	Length
ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section 3.1/Error! Reference source not found.	M	12-40
Alternative ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section	О	12-40

	3.4/Error! Reference source not found.		
Minimum acceptable ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section 3.5/Error! Reference source not found.	О	12-38
Minimum Desired Cell Rate	Section 3.3/Error! Reference source not found.	O	15

5.1.5 MODIFY ACKNOWLEDGE

Change the references and lengths of the indicated information elements in Table 2-2/af-cs-0148.003:

Information Element	Reference	Type	Length
ATM Traffic Descriptor	Section 3.1/Error! Reference source not found.	M	12-40

5.2 Signalling Procedures for High-Rate Traffic Parameters

The PNNI node shall process the high-rate version of the traffic parameters in a manner identical to the processing of the normal version of these parameters.

6 AINI support of High-Rate Traffic Parameters

[Normative]

Section 5 of this document applies to AINI.

7 Compatibility with Nodes Not Supporting This Feature

Upon receiving a message containing the high-rate version of the Traffic Parameters, nodes not supporting this feature shall treat the information element as a mandatory/non-mandatory information element content error.

For this reason, normal encoding should be used for rates less than 2^{24} cells per second.

***** END OF DOCUMENT *****